Public Document Pack

Committee Agenda
City of Westminster
Title:
Meeting Date:
Time:
Venue:
Members:

Business and Children's Policy and Scrutiny Committee
Monday 19th July, 2021
7.00 pm
This will be a virtual meeting.
Councillors:
Karen Scarborough
(Chairman)
Geoff Barraclough
Richard Elcho
Christabel Flight
Lindsey Hall
Aicha Less
Eoghain Murphy
Tim Roca

Elected Representatives:
Ryan Nichol, Parent Governor
Co-opted Voting Representatives:
Alix Ascough, CE Diocesan Rep
Marina Coleman, RC Diocesan Rep
Non-Voting Co-opted
Representatives:
Mark Hewitt, Headteacher, St John CE
Primary School
Wasim Butt, Principal, Beachcroft AP
Academy

Members of the public and press are welcome to attend the
meeting and listen to the discussion of Part 1 of the Agenda.
Link to live meeting
This meeting will be livestreamed and recorded. To access
the recording after the meeting, please revisit the link.
If you require any further information, please contact the
Committee Officer: Artemis Kassi, Lead Scrutiny
Advisor/Statutory Officer.
Email: akassi@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 078 1705 4991
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions, they should contact
the Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)
1.

MEMBERSHIP
To note any changes to the membership.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations of interest by Members and Officers of
the existence and nature of any pecuniary or any other significant
interests in matters on this agenda.

3.

MINUTES

(Pages 5 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the Committee’s meeting held on
Monday 26th April 2021.
4.

UPDATE FROM THE CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG
PEOPLE AND LEARNING

(Pages 9 - 12)

Councillor Tim Barnes, the Cabinet Member for Young People
and Learning, to provide an update to the Committee on current
and forthcoming issues in his portfolio and to answer questions
from Members.
5.

UPDATE FROM THE CABINET MEMBER FOR BUSINESS
AND PLANNING

(Pages 13 - 16)

Councillor Matthew Green, the Cabinet Member for Business and
Planning, to provide an update to the Committee on current and
forthcoming issues in his portfolio and to answer questions from
Members.
6.

REPORT ON GAMBLING POLICY
To receive a report on the Council’s Gambling Policy (Statement
of Principles for Gambling) under section 349 of the Gambling
Act 2005.

(Pages 17 - 22)

7.

WORK PROGRAMME
To discuss the Committee’s work programme for the municipal
year 2021 – 2022.

Stuart Love
Chief Executive
9 July 2021

(Pages 23 - 26)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
Business and Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee
26 April 2021
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Minutes of a meeting of the Business and Children’s Policy & Scrutiny Committee
held virtually on Monday 26 April 2021 at 6.30pm via Microsoft Teams.
Members Present: Councillors Karen Scarborough (Chairman), Geoff Barraclough,
Richard Elcho, Christabel Flight, Lindsey Hall, Aicha Less, Eoghain Murphy and Tim
Roca.
Elected Representatives: Ryan Nichol (Parent Governor)
Co-opted Voting Representatives: Marina Coleman (RC Diocesan Representative)
Non-Voting Co-opted Representatives: Wasim Butt (Principal, Beachcroft AP
Academy)
Also present: Councillor Timothy Barnes (Cabinet Member for Young People and
Learning), Emma Biskupski (LSBC Business Development Manager), James Blewett
(London Coordinator, Making Research Count, King’s College London), Nicky Crouch
(Director of WCC Family Services), Angela Flahive (Head of Safeguarding Review and
Quality Assurance), Councillor Matthew Green (Cabinet Member for Business, Licensing
and Planning), Lizzie Grumbach (Head of the Lord Mayor’s Office), Artemis Kassi (Senior
Committee and Governance Officer), Clayton Resulaj, Deputy Youth MP for
Westminster/Pimlico Academy.
Apologies: Alix Ascough (CE Diocesan Representative), Mark Hewitt (Headteacher, St
John CE Primary School)
1.

MEMBERSHIP

1.1

No changes to the membership

2.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

2.1

No further declarations of interests in respect of items to be discussed were
made.

Page 5

3.

MINUTES

3.1

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd March 2021 be
approved for signature by the Chairman as a true and correct record of the
proceedings.

4.

UPDATE: CABINET MEMBER FOR BUSINESS AND PLANNING

4.1

The Committee received a written update from the Cabinet Member, Councillor
Matthew Green, who responded to questions on the following topics:








4.2

the West End recovery plans for businesses and communities, including the reopening of retail and hospitality (al fresco dining)
the review of Westminster’s Gambling Licensing Policy
the rising rates of unemployment of young people in Westminster
the commencement and positive impact of the Kickstart programme and
Westminster Wheels workshops
Westminster Investment Service
the issues concerning tourist VAT and lobbying central government
the implementation and enforcement of the Busking and Street Entertainment
Policy
ACTION

1. The Committee requested an update from the previous meeting on the
Westminster Investment Service.
5.

UPDATE: CABINET MEMBER FOR YOUNG PEOPLE AND LEARNING

5.1

The Committee received a written update from the Cabinet Member, Councillor
Tim Barnes, who responded to questions on the following topics:









the recent events at Pimlico Academy and subsequent community
engagement, including the impact of media reports on Pimlico Academy in
the community
the communication with Ofsted, DfE, LEA and other stakeholders regarding
the situation at Pimlico Academy
the governance at Pimlico Academy
the programme to promote Westminster schools to pupils
the Bi-Borough School Inclusion Strategy and the reintroduction for excluded
pupils into mainstream education
the successful delivery of laptops to children and young people who attended
Westminster schools, which included those that are not Westminster residents
the reopening of libraries
the rates of Covid-19 in Westminster schools, following all students’ return, and
potential support for future vaccination programmes

Page 6

5.2

ACTIONS
1. Councillor Barnes to arrange a meeting with Councillor Murphy to discuss the
plans for reintroducing excluded pupils into mainstream education.

6.

THE LOCAL SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN PARTNERSHIP’S ANNUAL
REPORT

6.1

The Committee received the first annual report of the new Local Safeguarding
Children Partnership covering the borough footprints of Hammersmith and Fulham,
Kensington and Chelsea, and Westminster. The report set out the legal and
statutory context for the multi-agency safeguarding arrangements, a profile of
safeguarding data, shared safeguarding priorities, the activity to address these
priorities, the impact upon safeguarding during the Covid-19 pandemic, and the
difference that was made.

6.2

The Committee discussed the following issues:







the ways to promote safeguarding children as a key priority for all
the ways to hold the Partnership to account to ensure they are delivering
upon our collective safeguarding responsibilities
the engagement between the Partnership and children, young people and
communities
the referral pathways, access to them and raising awareness of them
the impact lockdown / Covid-19 has had including a change in distribution of
referral sources
the introduction of a new task group on children’s and young people’s wellbeing post Covid

6.3

The Committee acknowledged the dedicated work of those involved in producing
the report and delivering safeguarding within Westminster.

6.4

The Committee commended the work that officers had undertaken to deliver
safeguarding for children and young people in Westminster. The Committee
emphasised the importance of having a collaborative and close working
relationship between services, schools and the council generally and requested
more detailed information about Safer Together and about safeguarding training.

ACTIONS:
1. The Committee requested a financial paper from the Local Safeguarding
Children Partnership
2. The Committee requested a briefing paper regarding training to keep Members
informed
3. The Chair requested a Safer Together follow up.

Page 7

7.

WORK PROGRAMME

7.1

The Committee discussed its task group work on the emotional wellbeing and
mental health of children and young people in Westminster. The Committee also
discussed how unallocated items from the present municipal year could be carried
forward to the next year and that additionally directorates would be canvassed for
suggested items. The Committee noted that the next meeting would take place on
19th July.

7.2

RESOLVED: That the Work Programme be noted.

7.3

ACTION: Canvassing relevant directorates for work programme suggestions in
addition to suggestions from members.

8.

TERMINATION OF MEETING

8 .1

The meeting ended at 9.21pm.

CHAIRMAN _____________________

DATE ________________

Page 8

Agenda Item 4
Business and Children’s
Policy and Scrutiny Committee
Date:

19 July 2021

Report of:

Councillor Timothy Barnes

Portfolio:

Cabinet Member for Young People and
Learning

Report Author:
Contact Details:

Jack Shaw, Portfolio Advisor
jshaw@westminster.gov.uk

City for All – Young People and Learning Priorities
1.

Vibrant Communities

1.1

Keep Children at the Centre of Everything We Do
In March we hosted a ‘Here to Listen’ event which provided young people with a platform to share
any concerns they may have. Further events are planned to take place with parents and
community groups later in the year. There were a number of concerns raised by young people
including violence against women and girls and a lack of awareness of the services available to
them. Young people told us they felt safer in Westminster than elsewhere in London and we are
proactively working with them to agree the best way forward to strengthen the communication
we have with them.
Westminster Creative Collective project has also been established to mark children’s
experiences during the events of the past year, including lockdown and the Black Lives Matter
movement, in a series of creative projects and exhibitions. The project is a joint effort between
the children services, libraries and the economy team, as well as the Saatchi Gallery. The
exhibitions will initially be online as part of a City Lions virtual gallery and exhibited in four
Libraries (Victoria, Reference, Paddington and Queens Park). Additionally, a community mural
has been created at the Church Street Library. We have had over 200 pieces submitted and
selected 120 pieces to be displayed in the 4 libraries from the 28thJune for one month, after which
30 pieces will be selected to be displayed in the Saatchi Gallery from the 9 th – 30th August. An
event to celebrate the work is scheduled for 26th August.

1.2

Transform our Pre-birth to Five Programme
Our transformation plans, workstreams and strategies for our Pre-Birth to Five Programme have
now been agreed. As part of that exercise we consulted staff members and the community
through engagement workshops. Doing so has been invaluable. We are also currently working
with Central London Community Healthcare partners to modernise and digitise our health visiting
offer.
According to the latest figures from the Department for Education, the number of two-year-olds
taking up funded education in Westminster through Free Early Education Entitlements has fallen
by 2 percentage points from last year. This is a smaller drop than seen in elsewhere in London,
meaning that two-year-old take-up in Westminster in January 2021 was well above the London
average despite Covid-19. Take-up among three- and four-year-olds in Westminster continued
to follow the downward trend also seen in London and England. Fewer than half the estimated
number of Westminster children entitled to the universal offer were registered to take up a funded
place in Westminster this January. The Early Education and Childcare Service is introducing a

Page 9

number of promotional and communication strategies to increase take up of FEEE places across
the borough.

1.3

Improve our Offer for Children with Special Needs and Disabilities
Following the principles of co-production, we are currently working with key local stakeholders to
refresh our Local Area SEND Strategy for the period 2021-2024. This is due to be published in
September 2021. There is an ongoing focus on reducing waiting times for autism diagnosis and
improving access to face-to-face speech and language therapy support. Work is underway
between Children’s Services and the CCG on these two areas of improvement and an action
plan is being finalised.

2.

Areas of Focus

2.1

Pimlico Academy
We continue to support Pimlico Academy. There has been a change in the senior leadership
team and we are working with the new interim Principal to reset the culture at the school, ensure
the needs of pupils, teachers and residents are better understood and met, and drive
improvement.

2.2

Sir Simon Milton Westminster - UTC
We remain in regular communication with the Department for Education and UTC over the
colleges status and support.

2.3

Laptop Distribution – Digital Futures Programme
Through our Digital Futures Programme and together with the Department for Education we have
been working closely with partners to ensure that all children in the borough have access to digital
devices and the internet. The Department for Education has subsequently made more devices
available to schools and an additional 316 devices have been secured for children attending
Westminster schools – bringing the total to date to 5565 since the program began.

2.4

COVID-19 Picture in Schools
Regular, twice-weekly testing has been available for all schools and colleges – including staff,
parents and support bubbles. Separately, the Medicines and Healthcare products Regulatory
Agency announced earlier this month, on Friday 4 June, that the Pfizer vaccine is safe for use in
12-15-year-olds.
Covid cases in WCC for the period of 4th Jan – 11th June
Setting type
Independent
Secondary
Primary
Special
Nursery / Early Years & Children’s
Centres
Special
Grand Total

2.5

No. of cases in
pupils
7
10
29
2
23

No. of cases in
staff
4
1
28
6
40

Sum of
Total
11
11
57
8
63

1
72

0
79

1
151

Holiday Activity and Food Fund (HAF)

Page 10

Westminster City Council has been allocated a total of £709,120 for the provision of a school
holiday food and activity offer between 1st April and 31st December 2021. In January 2021, we
had 6,862 children eligible for free school meals attending council-maintained schools in the
borough. Department for Education funding seeks to improve the holiday experience of
disadvantaged children who receive free school meals, aged 5-16, through the delivery of free
holiday provision, including healthy food and enriching activities which support their wellbeing
and wider educational attainment. A minimum provision will be available for the equivalent of at
least 4 hours, 4 days a week over 4 weeks in the summer, one week in Easter and one week at
Christmas this year.
2.6

Youth Unemployment
Westminster City Council has a comprehensive offer of more than 40 services across the council
to tackle youth unemployment, including employment support, mental health services, physical
activity and social care. Due to the ongoing effects of the pandemic, 12% of residents aged 1824-year-olds are currently not in unemployment. Since March 2020 our claimant count has also
increased and the number of 16-17-year-olds not in education, employment or training has risen
to 64. This is from a very low base and the numbers are still low enough that we can develop
individual support plans for all of our young people.

2.7

Youth Violence
The Youth Offending Service and the Integrated Gangs and Exploitation Unit are working closely
with young people across Westminster. This work is supported by family therapists who take a
whole family approach to reduce risk of youth violence and we continue to deploy a specialist
sexual violence practitioner to work with young women at risk of sexual harm and exploitation.
Across family services, there is significant work ongoing to address issues of serious youth
violence at the earliest opportunity. This includes an inclusion pilot, led by Early Help services in
partnership with local VCS organisations and schools which works with pupils at risk of exclusion.

2.8

Education Recovery
All schools have received catch up funding allocations in the autumn and spring terms this
academic year and a further allocation will be made this term. This funding is being used to
support the schools catch up programmes, particularly enhancing the intervention programmes
that they have in place for children and young people who have fallen behind in reading, writing
and mathematics during the lockdown. Through this grant the average primary school will receive
around £6,000 extra, and the average secondary school around £22,000 extra. There will also
be additional resourcing for teacher development and training so that they have the knowledge
and skills to meet the needs of children and young people who have fallen behind in their learning.
Westminster Archives and MoD Theatre delivered interactive workshops to support the mental
health and wellbeing of young people, with over 40 sessions running until July. Officers are also
currently working with schools and cultural partners to explore opportunities to strengthen the
catch-up offer using the Holiday and Activities Fund.

2.9

Primary School Capacity
We continue to proactively work with a number of schools to manage pupil number shortfalls,
particularly in primary schools. Schools have already taken positive action to reduce risk,
including attracting more pupils, filling vacancies, managing financial shortfalls, restructuring and
permanently reducing published admissions numbers. We continue to work with schools and are
supporting them find long-term solutions.

3.

Cabinet Member Decisions (May – June 2021)
Since the last Business and Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee, no notifiable decisions
have been made. The following are for determination:

Page 11




Victoria Business Library
Alternative Provision and Behaviour Outreach Contract Award

Page 12

Agenda Item 5
Business and Children’s Policy
Scrutiny Committee
I

1

Date:
Portfolio:

Monday 19 July 2021
Business, Licensing and Planning

The Report Of:

Councillor Matthew Green, Cabinet
Business, Licensing and Planning

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Jack Shaw, Portfolio Advisor
jshaw@westminster.gov.uk

Member

for

City for All – Business, Licensing and Planning Priorities
Thriving Economy
West End Recovery- West End Pop-up Project

1.1

The pop-up timeline is being aligned across the West End with key animation and cultural event
milestones for each area. The first two pop-ups opened in the West End from 10 June, showcasing the
work of up-and-coming London-based artists and creatives. Artists involved include Joyce Fraser
(founder of Black Heroes Foundation), Lito Apostolakou (installation and mixed-media artist). A third,
Sarah Porter, an abstract painter, will open mid-July. In partnership with NWEC and property owners, a
call-out was launched in June for pop-up occupiers for up to 10 spaces in Oxford Street, Regent Street
and Mayfair. 73 applications for pop-ups were received.
West End Recovery- Westminster Investment Service

1.2

The new service officially launched on 29 June at the Radisson Blu Edwardian Hampshire Hotel. The
launch event included an expert panel and was delivered in a hybrid fashion of in-person and virtual
attendance to maximise attendance/engagement whilst observing social distancing requirements.
West End Recovery- Westminster Animation Strategy

1.3

A ‘calendar’ has been developed incorporating partner-lead activities and campaigns from June to
December 2021. Discussions are ongoing with partners across the West End and the GLA to identify
opportunities
to
collaborate
and
widen
the
programme
of
events
(https://www.westminster.gov.uk/whats-on-westminster/events). A BID and Landowner roundtable was
held on 20 April to discuss. Feasibility work is being undertaken with regards to new proposals across
each of the animation strands.
West End Recovery- Future Occupiers

1.4

The programme board meets quarterly and we work closely with London & Partners on the delivery
of the programme. Between board meetings there is a regular sharing of pipeline enquiries and
programme updates. We took part in the Virtual Trade mission for northeast Asia - Japan, Korea and
Hong Kong (12-15 July) and the lead generation agency (OCO Consulting) mobilised theme workshops
in June. Further proposition workshops have been planned for July.
Al fresco hospitality

1.5

Al fresco hospitality reopened on 12 April 2021. As of publication, over 700 pavement licences have
been granted to restaurants to provide nearly 15,000 seats for outdoor food and beverage service until
30 September 2021. The current Government scheme for al-fresco dining is in the process of being

Page
1 13

extended to September 2022, with no additional funding provided. Officers are actively engaging with
MHCLG and the LGA to ensure an understanding of the challenges and costs the council will face.
Kickstart
1.6 A Kickstart Insight Day was held on 2 June 2021 at City Hall, inviting along all of the Westminster residents
who have applied for one of the 30 internal opportunities to hear directly from the various hiring
managers providing the Kickstart opportunities within their teams. Officers are in the process of finalising
the onboarding and induction arrangements for the first 10-15 new joiners to the City Council via
Kickstart. The Department for Work and Pensions continue to struggle to cope with demand and lack
capacity to support rollout of the national programme. Referral rates for Westminster residents have
been lower than anticipated given the number of residents claiming Universal Credit and eligible for
Kickstart in the borough and this matter is being examined urgently with DWP.
Westminster Wheels
1.6

To date, 17 young people from Westminster have been trained through the Westminster Wheels (WW)
project. The second cohort finishes employment with WW in September and with a third cohort in
November. Three out of our first cohort of five trainees have started work at local bike retailers, another
has recently had a work trial. Their soft skills, confidence and sense of purpose has increased
tremendously. We are continuing to prepare our trainees for work placements with our employer
partners. The project is now recruiting for a fourth cohort of trainees to join the project and our aim is to
have supported 28 unemployed residents into careers in the bike sector by 2021/22. Plans for the next
quarter include extending our opening hours from the initial phase of the project, making links with the
Council’s Cycle Hangar Scheme to explore opportunities to promote Wheels and progressing a
partnership with DWP to supply jobseekers with bikes, offering a low-cost way of transport and revenue
for the project from bike sales.

Vibrant Communities
Street Entertainment
2

Following the launch of the policy, we have received 99 licence applications and issued 83 licences. A
dedicated team of City Inspectors has been deployed to enable engagement with performers in the
regulated area, working 7 days a week from 12:00 – 22:00. The team proactively patrol the regulated
area responding to complaints and engaging with licensed and unlicensed performers to raise
awareness of the new policy and ensure compliance. Apart from Covent Garden, we have seen a high
level of compliance with the policy with most performers applying for a licence after engagement with
our officers or not returning. The first busking forum is also being launched next month, and officers are
working towards the first 3-month review of the impact of the policy.
Gambling Licensing Policy

2.1

With the review of the Gambling Licensing Policy, there is an opportunity to tighten our policy approach
to provide residents, responsible authorities and the Licensing Sub-Committee the ability to challenge
the “aim to permit” principles. It is intended to undertake consultation on the proposed new policy at the
end of July for a period of 8 weeks. The new policy will be brought before Full Council in November for
consideration and adoption.
City Plan

2.2

The City Plan 2019-40 has now replaced the policies in the 2016 City Plan and 2007 Unitary
Development Plan and since April, has been used alongside the new London Plan 2021 to determine
all planning applications in the city.
Environmental Supplementary Planning Document

2.3

The council launched the Environmental Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for formal
consultation on 17 May, which ran for six weeks until 28 June. The Environmental SPD provides further
guidance on the City Plan’s environment policies, supporting our City for All aspirations to create a

Page2 14

greener, cleaner and healthier city. It gives details on how developers can meet the highest sustainability
standards covering issues such as air quality, local environmental impacts, green infrastructure, flood
risk, energy and waste. We have held a series of workshops with stakeholders and interested parties

covering each of the themes in the document. The discussions at each of the workshops will be
reviewed alongside written submissions to help shape the final iteration of the SPD, which will be
published later this year. The SPD is central to our ambition to combat the climate emergency. It
gives a greater prominence and weight to environment issues than the previous planning framework
and represents a step change on issues such as sustainable retrofitting of historic properties or
protection of tranquil spaces from noise pollution where the council had previously issued informal
guidance. W e welcome the input received from all stakeholders to ensure the final SPD is ambitious,

robust, forward-looking and exceeds expectations.
Beneficial Ownership
2.4

The Government has or intends to have registers of beneficial ownership for three different types of
assets: companies, properties and land, and trusts. Information on the beneficial ownership of
companies (the People with Significant Control (PSC) register) has been publicly available since 2016.
In June G7 Finance Ministers agreed to implement and strengthen registries of company beneficial
ownership information in their respective jurisdictions. The register for trusts was introduced in 2017 and
is not public. The Government is yet to publish the detail for a public beneficial ownership register for
UK property. At this stage, prior to legislation on the existence of beneficial ownership on property, it
would be premature to filter activity according to a future judgement on beneficial ownership.
Planning Engagement

2.5

A draft Early Community Engagement Guidance for developers was consulted upon with resident
groups and developer representatives in March 2021. The informal guidance promotes the use of digital
engagement methods in combination with traditional engagement methods and encourages more
transparency and early engagement with communities on development proposals. A finalised version
of the guidance is expected to be published in June, subject to further consultation.

Planning
2.6

Site visits are now being undertaken where they are necessary to enable the determination of the
application and where Covid secure arrangement have been put in place by the applicant. Further
review of the Site visit protocols for planning applications will be undertaken following the Government’s
announcement of the guidelines that will remain in place from 19 July 2021 onwards with the anticipation
that normal service can resume.

2.7

The department currently has 3,219 planning and related applications that are valid and under
consideration. Whilst this number has increased since March (2,590), this is in large part in response to
an increase in the number of applications being submitted during the first 6 months of 2021 compared
to during 2020. Since 1 January 4,143 planning and related applications have been submitted. Based
on this number and submission rate, the projected number of applications for 2021 is likely to be circa
8,000. This projected upturn in application numbers would reverse the significant decline in application
numbers observed in 2020 during the height of the Coronavirus pandemic when 7,562 planning and
related applications were submitted during the calendar year. A total of circa 8,000 applications for 2021
would mark the beginning of a transition back towards the levels of application submission experienced
in the years preceding the pandemic when 9,332 application were submitted in 2019 and 9,797 in 2018.
Albeit it should be noted that there was an existing underlying trend for a fall in application numbers
prior to the pandemic as a result of a variety of factors, including increased scope of permitted
development rights and developer uncertainty connected to the period preceding Brexit.

2.8

The Planning Enforcement Team currently have 2,830 live enforcement investigations. This compares
to 2,718 live enforcement investigations in March 2021.
Westminster Adult Education Service (WAES)

Page
3 15

2.9

The Westminster Adult Education Service (WAES) continues to deliver education and training
programmes that support residents. We are currently running a successful Level 3 programme for
learners seeking careers in the education sector, with 19 learners studying until July. To date, 7 (37%)
have gained employment and are now working on completing their qualification in school settings. This
programme has always performed well for learners looking for employment pathways, with around 70%
gaining employment from a full cohort. WAES continues to celebrate the success of learners and we
are hosting an exciting line-up of celebratory events this summer, including the Learner Awards in July.

Smart City
Digital Planning Tools
3

A digital strategy for Place Shaping and Town Planning is currently in development to ensure
appropriate digital tools are identified, prioritised and implemented to ensure an easier service for
residents and service users to interact with and make planning applications simpler.

4

Cabinet Member Key Decisions
Since the last Business and Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee, I have formally approved the
following key decisions:


Adoption of the Westminster City Plan 2019 - 2040 and Policies Map Cabinet Member Report

Since the last Business and Children’s Policy and Scrutiny Committee, the following key decisions are
yet to be formally approved:






Review of the Local List of Information Requirements for Planning and Associated Applications:
Agreement to Consult
Harley Street Area Partnerships BID Ballot
Local Development Scheme
Revision of the Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003
Queen’s Park Neighbourhood Plan

Page4 16

Agenda Item 6
AGENDA ITEM No:

Business and Children’s
Policy and Scrutiny
Committee
Date:

Monday 19th July 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

Review of Gambling Policy

Report of:

Raj Mistry, Executive Director of Environment and
City Management
Pedro Wrobel, Executive Director, Innovation and
Change Mistry

Cabinet Member Portfolio

Cabinet Member for Business, Licensing and
Planning

Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

Thriving Economy and Vibrant Communities

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Kerry Simpkin, Head of Licensing, Place and
Investment Policy
ksimpkin@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

The licensing authority is required under Section 349 of the Act to prepare and
publish its Statement of Principles for Gambling (Gambling Policy) for that it
proposes to apply in exercising its functions under the Act every three years.
Before publishing its licensing policy, the licensing authority must consult
gambling operators (including industry associations) and those who are likely
to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s function under the Act (e.g.
residents and businesses). The three-year period for Westminster’s current
licensing policy for gambling will end on the 30th January 2022.

1.2

This paper sets out the intentions to revise the Councils Gambling Policy so
that it provides greater clarity on the Licensing Authority’s expectations from
applicants. This will include a greater focus on how gambling operators
should consider and mitigate any local risks. We have also included an
indicative timeline for the governance process for the consideration and
adoption of the policy.

2.

Key Matters for the Committee’s Consideration

2.1

The Committee is asked to:

Page 17

1





Comment on the proposed changes to the Gambling Policy
Comment on the proposal to produce Local Area Profiles
Comment on groups and organisations that the Council may want to
engage with during the consultation period

3.

Background

3.1

The Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) regulates gambling in Great Britain. It is
enforced by the Gambling Commission (the Commission). Local authorities
are responsible for co-regulation with the Commission but are limited to
enforcing their own authorisations or illegal gambling in their areas.

3.2

The Commission is also responsible for issuing operating licences,
determining technical specifications for gambling related play (e.g. machines,
online games), publishing statutory Codes of Practice1 and the Guidance for
Licensing Authorities2.

3.3

The Act contains three licensing objectives which underpin the functions that
the Commission and licensing authorities will perform. These objectives are
central to the regulatory regime created by the Act. They are:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime.
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.

The Current Gambling Policy
3.4

The Council’s current Gambling Policy has been effective since the
introduction of the Gambling Act in 2007. However, the policy has limited
criteria and considerations associated with each of the gambling premises
licence uses. Whilst this policy approach has provided the Licensing SubCommittee with a wide scope when considering applications, it is felt that it
does not provide the key expectations that the Council expects from
applicants.

3.5

The gambling sector has gone through a significant shift in the past 3 years
since the policy was last revised. The prevalence of betting shops and the
impact of the stake, prize and game play of B2 gaming machines (also known
as fixed odds betting terminals) in these premises were of significant concern.
However, in 2019, following significant pressure and lobbying the government
amended the Gambling Act to reduce the maximum stake of B2 gaming
Machines from £100 to £2. Following that change there has been a significant
reduction in the number of betting shops within the City. When the current
policy was adopted in 2019, there were 94 betting shops within Westminster.

1

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-gambling-businesses/Compliance/LCCP/Licenceconditions-and-codes-of-practice.aspx
2 https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Guidance-to-licensingauthorities.aspx

Page 18

2

Today there are 55 betting shops, which is a reduction of 39 premises (41% of
all betting premises) in the past two and a half years.
3.6

Since the change in the Act and the reduction in betting shops within
Westminster there has been growing interest in empty betting shop units from
gambling operators who wish to open bingo or adult gaming centres. These
premises provide a significant number of category B3 gaming machines. The
B3 machines operate in a similar way to B2 gaming machines and have the
same stake (£2) and prize (£500). There has been growing concern about the
potential impact of these premises on the area in which they are located.
Recent licence applications have highlighted these concerns, particularly
relating to the large number of machines made available for use and the
potential impact on vulnerable people in the area. However, due to the
requirements of the Act and the presumption in favour of gambling
applications there has been insufficient grounds to refuse such applications.

3.7

Although it is extremely difficult to refuse gambling applications due to the
presumption in favour of the applicant the Gambling Policy is a key factor in
the consideration of such applications. We now have an opportunity to
strengthen the current Gambling Policy to provide greater clarity on the
Councils expectations on gambling operators wishing to operate within
Westminster. A similar approach to that taken within the recent revision of the
Licensing Policy could be adopted where there are specific areas of concerns.
In the Licensing Policy Special Consideration Zones were adopted with an
associated policy that required applicants to demonstrate that they have
considered the local area and set out how their operation will not adversely
impact or exacerbate the issues of concern in that area.

New Local Area Profile
3.8

To enable the inclusion of spatial policies, similar to the approach taken in the
Licensing Policy for Special Consideration Zones, the Council needs to
develop a picture of the City and the areas where there is greater risk of harm
from gambling premises. It is intended to produce a Local Area Profile for our
new Gambling Policy to highlight these areas. This profile will not form part of
the Policy itself and will stand alone. The Local Area Profile will operate in a
similar way to the Cumulative Impact Assessment document that has been
produced for the Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Having the
Local Area Profile separate from the Gambling Policy will enable the Council
to update it outside of the statutory framework for revisions and adoption for
the Gambling Policy.

3.9

In 2015, Westminster City Council and Manchester City Council partnered to
commission specific research on gambling related harm and how a gambling
harm risk index could be developed. This was the first time that a local
authority had undertaken specific research in this area to identify the risk to
local people. This work was completed in 2016. The subsequent gambling
harm risk index combined a number of data sets relating to different groups
who were identified as being at risk to gambling related harm. Using the data
at the time it was possible to establish where these groups lived and worked

Page 19

3

within the City. Unfortunately, it is not possible to update the data sets behind
this index before the policy must be readopted. The data that was used for
this index is now over 7 years old and the new data, such as the census
information, which is critical in the development of the index will not be
available until 2022.
3.10

It is proposed to develop a Local Area Profile that will provide information
rather than a risk index that will assist applicants, responsible authorities and
residents to consider the potential impact of the gambling operation on the
local population and area. This document will attempt to combine a number of
data sets based on people and location that will be used to highlight areas that
should have special consideration by applicants when making an application.

3.11

The Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities supports the
development of Local Area Profiles and their use to aide applicants in
completing their gambling risk assessment. They set out within the guidance
a number of perceived benefits for local authorities if they develop and include
a Local Area Profile alongside their policy. The benefits of a Local Area
Profile are:






3.12

enabling licensing authorities to better serve their local community, by
better reflecting the community and the risks within it
greater clarity for operators as to the relevant factors in licensing
authority decision making which will lead to improved premises licence
applications, with the operator already incorporating controls and
measures to mitigate risk in their application
enabling licensing authorities to make robust but fair decisions, based
on a clear, published set of factors and risks, which are therefore less
susceptible to challenge
encouraging a proactive approach to risk that is likely to result in
reduced compliance and enforcement action.

The Council already has a good understanding of the local risks and areas of
concern from the 2015/16 research and gambling harm index. However, to
develop the Local Area Profile we will be looking to identify current data sets
that relate to people and the area in which they live. These data sets may
include:
People
Ethnicity
Age
Homeless people
People with drug
dependency/misuse
People with learning
disabilities/difficulties
People living in deprived areas
Unemployment and income

Location
Schools, universities, and other
educational establishments
Hostels, supported housing
Crime levels and locations
Licensed gambling premises
Gambling Treatment Centres
Alcohol and Drug Treatment
Centres
Food Banks

Page 20

4

deprivation
People with gambling problems
Young people and students
Veterans
People who have
personality/cognitive impairments
People with mental health problems

Job Centres
Free school meals
Pharmacies providing drug support
Youth Centres
Money lenders and Pawnbrokers

Proposed Revisions within the Gambling Policy
3.13

It is intended to change the structure of the Gambling Policy and effectively
redraft a new version. The revised or new policy could closely resemble the
approach taken with the recent Licensing Policy revision. A greater emphasis
will be given to setting the considerations, criteria and expectations that
applicants will need to meet.

Licensing Objectives Policies
3.14

The policies associated with the three licensing objectives will be
strengthened. We will look to include a significant number of considerations
that applicants are expected to address as part of their application. If
applicants do not address these specific points, then a responsible authority or
a resident can highlight this in their representation against the application.
This would require the applicant to address why they have not considered it
either before or during a hearing. Applications that fail to consider the key
elements of the licensing objectives policy may not be reasonably consistent
with these objectives and it could be refused.

Spatial Policy
3.15

The new revised policy will include a new spatial policy that will replicate the
approach taken for Special Consideration Zones within the Licensing Policy. It
is intended to identify areas from the Local Area Profile where there is a
combination of factors that would provide a greater concern and risk if a
gambling operation was to open without sufficient mitigation. The policy will
require applicants to demonstrate, via their Gambling Risk Assessments, that
they have considered the local issues identified within the Local Area Profile
and put forward sufficient mitigation that they believe would address any
concerns and reduce or remove any negative impacts. The risk assessment
would be scrutinised by residents, responsible authorities and if the application
was opposed the Licensing Sub-Committee when determining the application.

Risk Assessment Policy
3.16

To ensure that applicants provide a sufficient Gambling Risk Assessment it is
intended to create a specific policy setting out the expectations for undertaking
and considering risks associated with the operation of the gambling premises.
The Council has provided separate guidance on the risk assessment process
for gambling operators, but we now intend to include this within the policy.
This new risk assessment and spatial policies will ensure that sufficient

Page 21

5

consideration is given on the operation and potential impact of their gambling
premises. If applicants fail to provide a sufficient risk assessment with
adequate mitigation the policy will enable the Licensing Authority to impose
conditions that would address these local issues or refuse the application.
Premises Use Policies
3.17

The Gambling Act, helpfully categorises each gambling operation into specific
types of gambling premises licences. The current policy has a section for
each of these premises use types. It is intended to set out the key policy
considerations at the front of each premises use policy similar to the approach
in the Licensing Policy. Each policy will provide far more detail in the key
considerations and criteria expected of applicants within Westminster. This
will be linked to the risk assessment and spatial policy requirements.

Consultation and Governance
3.18

The Gambling Act sets out a statutory requirement on the consideration,
consultation, and adoption of the Gambling Policy. The final revised policy
must be adopted by Full Council and it must be in place before the expiry of
the current Gambling Policy, 30th January 2022. To achieve the statutory
requirement and meet the Council’s Full Council meeting cycle the following
indicative governance timetable has been produced setting out the key
meeting and event dates.
Key Event or Meeting
Start Consultation (8 weeks)
End Consultation
Cabinet Member Decision

Date
9th August
3rd October
No later than 24th
October
10th November
31st January 2022

Full Council
New Policy comes into effect
6.2

It is acknowledged that the consultation period will commence during the
summer period. However, the consultation period will run for 8 weeks which
will enable stakeholders sufficient time to consider the proposals after the
summer holiday period.
If you have any queries about this Report or wish to inspect any of the
Background Papers, please contact Kerry Simpkin
ksimpkin@westminster.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Westminster City Council Statement of Gambling Principles 2019-20223
3https://www.westminster.gov.uk/sites/default/files/media/documents/statement_of_gambling_principle

s_-_october_2018.pdf

Page 22

6

Agenda Item 7
Business and Children
Policy & Scrutiny
Committee
Date:

19 July 2021

Classification:

General Release

Title:

2020/21 Work Programme

Report of:

Head of Governance and Councillor Liaison

Cabinet Member Portfolios: Cabinet Member for Business and Planning
Cabinet Member for Young People and Learning
Wards Involved:

All

Policy Context:

All

Report Author and
Contact Details:

Artemis Kassi
akassi@westminster.gov.uk

1.

Executive Summary

1.

This report requests the committee members to consider the work programme
the 2021/2022 municipal year.

2.

Meeting dates for the 2021/2022 year

2.1

The Committee is advised that the scheduled meeting dates for the 2021/2022
year are:





7 October 2021;
29 November 2021;
2 February 2022; and
31 March 2022.

3.

Suggested topics

3.1

The Committee is reminded that a scrutiny task group to investigate the
emotional wellbeing and mental health of young people in Westminster has
been established, with membership drawn from this Committee in addition to
the Adults and Public Health Policy and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 23

3.2

The Committee’s agenda for the meeting on 19th July includes the Council’s
gambling policy. The Committee is asked to discuss and suggest potential
topics for remainder of the year. The Committee is also advised that officers will
be conducting horizon scanning and canvassing for topics in the summer
recess.
If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect any of the
background papers, please contact Artemis Kassi.
akassi@westminster.gov.uk

Appendix 1: Terms of Reference

Page 24

BUSINESS AND CHILDREN'S POLICY AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
CONSTITUTION
Eight Members of the Council (five Majority Party Members and three Minority Party
Members), but shall not include a Member of the Cabinet.
Four co-opted Members with voting rights i.e. one co-opted representative each from
the Church of England and Roman Catholic Diocesan Education Boards and two
Parent Governor Representatives. Two co-opted Members without voting rights, ie 2
Headteachers of Westminster maintained schools.
NB: The voting rights of the co-opted only extend to matters relating to
Education.
TERMS OF REFERENCE
(a) To carry out the Policy and Scrutiny functions, as set out in Article 6 of the
Constitution in respect of matters relating to all those duties within the terms of
reference of the Cabinet Member for Business, Licensing and Planning and the
Cabinet Member for Young People and Learning.
(b) To carry out the Policy and Scrutiny function in respect of matters within the remit
of the Council’s non-executive Committees and Sub-Committees, which are within
the broad remit of the Committee, in accordance with paragraph 13 (a) of the Policy
and Scrutiny procedure rules.
(c) Matters within the broad remit of the Cabinet Members referred to in (a) above
which are the responsibility of external agencies and in particular to scrutinise
matters relating to the provision of Health Services within Westminster, including the
consideration of any reports referred by the local Health Watch.
(d) To scrutinise the duties of the Lead Members which fall within the remit of the
Committee or as otherwise allocated by the Westminster Scrutiny Commission.
(e) To scrutinise any Bi-borough proposals which impact on service areas that fall
within the Committee’s terms of reference.
(f) Any other matter allocated by the Westminster Scrutiny Commission.
(g) To have the power to establish ad hoc or Standing Sub-Committees as Task
Groups to carry out the scrutiny of functions within these terms of reference.
(h) To oversee any issues relating to Performance within the Committee’s terms of
reference.

Page 25

(i) To have the power to scrutinise those partner organisations that are relevant to
the remit of the Committee.

Page 26

